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I. STATEMENT OF THE FACTS
A. FACTS RELEVANT TO THE PRETRIAL ADJUDICATIONS

Appellant Nancy Tengler is a young, dynamic woman. Defendants below include
the company Appellant helped found, the company’s male officers, who were so
“threatened by [Appellant’s] femininity” that they took unlawtul steps to deal with this
“problem,” Olaf Isachsen (“Isachsen™), a consultant engaged by the company, and Jeffrey
Collinson (“Collinson”j, a member of the company’s board of directors.

In 1989 Appellant, together with Anthony Spare (“Spare”), Kenneth Kaplan
(“Kaplan™) and Andrew Bischel (“Bischel”), founded the investment management
company then named Spare, Tengler, Kaplan & Bischel (now named Spare, Kaplan,
Bischel & Associates: it is referred to herein as “Respondent” or “STK.&B”). Each of
those individuals became shareholders, officers and directors of STK&B. Spare was the
largest shareholder and Chief Executive Officer; Appellant was the second largest
shareholder, President and Chief Operating Officer. The capitalization of STK&B
included $1.8 million obtained from the venture capital firm Schroder Venture Managers.
Inc. (“Schroder”™). As a result of that mvestment, Respondent Collinson, a part owner of
Schroder, was placed on STK&B’s Board of Directors,

Appellant’s duties included responsibility for sales, marketing and client service.
as well as management of the day-to-day operations of the firm. She was also a member
of two of the firm’s key investment strategy teams: the Equity Income Strategy Team and

the Balanced Strategy Team. Largely as a result of Appellant’s cfforts, STK&B became

profitable in 1993, (A0334. number 26. p. A05ST6 1y Appellant naturally anticipated that

| Citations herein to the Clerk’s Transcript on Appeal are referred to by “CT™ followed
by the page number: citations to the Stipulation Augmenting Record on Appeal are
relerred 1o by the unambisuous page numbers which commence with an “A:™ citations 1o
the chmcf‘ 5 Transcripts on Appeal are referred (o by "R followed by the date of the
transcribed procccding and the page number. SC\-’QI'L’.I documcn'tx 1'\1‘011.1 the ) o
Collinsonsdsachsen Appeal (A07753) have been incorporated into this appeal at Lxhibil
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she would be handsomely rewarded her for her investment, as well as her four years of
dedication and hard work that contributed so heavily to STK&B’s success. Behind the

scenes, however, the male officers of STK&B, with the aid of Collinson, were plotting
against her.

In November 1993 Appellant had been instrumental in presenting a highly
successful annual client conference for STK&B, and she received high praise for
managing this event. (A0334, number 21, p. 0900) After the conterence, Appellant went
on a three-week vacation. (A0334, number 26, p. A0284) Apparently the success she had
achieved at STK&B, and particularly the attention and accolades she received after the
successful client conference, triggered a response from her male colleagues. While she
was on vacation, the male officers of STK&B commenced a scheme that led to the
company imposing intolerable conditions on Appellant’s employment, and ultimately
drove her out of the firm.

. On December 10, 1993, without Appellant’s knowledge, Spare sent
Collinson a memorandum stating that he was diminishing Appellant’s role in the
company and changing the conditions of her employment. (A0335, number 29, p. AU013)

. On December 20, 1993, Kaplan sent a memorandum to Spare complamning
about Appellant’s compensation and equitly in the company. (A0334, number 26, pp.
AG124, AQLR8)

. On December 29, 1993, Bischel sent a confidential letter to Collinson
complaining about Appellant’s compensation and equity in the company. (A0334,
number 26, pp. A0485-6)

- On January 11, 1994, Spare announced changes i the compensation,

Y

ownership and working relationsbips at STK&B. (A0335. number 29, pp. A0015-19).

O 1o the Stipulation Augmenting Record on Appeal (AU332). Citations to thege
documents are referred 10 by (he page number upon which the cite appears. the number ol
the cite. and then the page cite from the Clerk’s Transeript in the Collinson/isachsen

appeal.

[
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. On January 11, 1994, Spare also sent a memo criticizing Appellant, not
only to Appellant, but also to Kaplan and Bischel. (A0335, number 29, p. A0020)

. On January 12, 1994, Spare sent Collinson a fax informing Collinson that
he had sent a confidential memo to Appellant “about her attitude.” (A0335, number 29, p.
A0014) '

During this same period of time, Collinson proposed that STK&B hire a
management consultant, and in February 1994 Spare engaged Respondent [sachsen,
ostensibly to conduct an organizational climate study and prepare a report. (A0333,
number 16, p. 01155; A0334, number 26, pp. A0616-7) It appeared to Appellant that
[sachsen and Spare were old friends. (A0334, number 26, p. AU323) ‘

During February 1994 Isachsen met with employees of STK&B. On March 1,
1994 Isachsen met with Spare and agreed to send Spare a “personal report,” which he
sent on March 6, 1994. (A0334, number 26, pp. A0639-41, A0714) In that personal
report, Isachsen told Spare that “the question of Nancy's [7.e., Appellant’s] future role
becomes critical” (A0334, number 26, p. A0723), that “she probably should not continue
in her day to day hands on management role™ (A0334, number 26, p. AU723), and “1f she
continues in her present role the firm will be further damaged” (A0334, number 26, p.
A0724). Spare faxed back a message to Isachsen, saying “Great Stuff.” (A0334, number
26, p. A0726)

On March 8, 1994, Isachsen and Spare met for six hours in San Diego, during
which they concocted a plan for Sparc to insinuate himself into Appellant’s role as the
{irm’s primary client contact, and to package this change so it would look like 1t was
Appellant’s idca. (A0334, number 26, pp. A06406-7)

On March 18, 1994, [sachsen met again with Spare. and then with Bischel.
(A0334, number 20, pp. A0633-4) Al these meetings thev discussed moving Appellant
oul of the firm’s San IFrancisco office and putting her m a branch office m Alamo.
California, with a small staff to run marketing and client services. This would. ot coursc.
Loave been a massive reduction in Appellant’s responsibiiites and opportunities at

CTE &1 She was. at that time, the President and Chiet Overating Officer responsible tor

ol
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the day-to-day operation of the entire firm, as well as having significant involvement in
the investment decisions of the firm, including membership on two of the firm’s key
investment strategy teams. During this meeting Bischel noted that "Nancy is a
hindrance.” (A0334, number 26, pp. A0658-9) The plan was to move Appellant to
Alamo, so Spare “could assume the day-to-day management and leadership of the rest of
the company here in San Francisco.” (A0334, number 26, p. A0635-6)

Appellant, of course, was unaware of these behind-the-scenes machinations. But
she met with Isachsen at about thié same time and became aware of the motives and
attitudes of the defendants. At that meeting Isachsen told Appellant that Spare, Kaplan
and Bischel were “threatened by her femininity.” He said that women, especially
powerful, young women “evoke certain reactions from men.” He said that she had that
coing “against” her; “it seemed to be a problem.” He oifered to “mentor™ her to help her

“channel her femininity.” He told her he had “worked with” other powerful women like

her. (A0334, number 26, pp. A0320-6; CT 1488, Exhibit B) One of the men from whom

Appellant had apparently evoked such a reaction was Spare. Spare’s attitude toward
women was demonstrated by the fact that he brought to the STK&B offices photographs
he had personally taken of nude women, including enlargements of female breasts and
buttocks. Spare, the Chief Executive Officer of the company, hung these photographs not
only in his own office, but also on the walls of common spaces in the firm. including the
main corridor leading from the front door. (A0334, number 26. pp. AU342-8)

On March 29, 1994, Isachsen, Spare and Appellant met at the Park Hyatt T1otel.
Appellant was presented with the defendants” plan to severely diminish her duties and
responsibilities and move her to a branch office in Alamo. She rejected this out of hand.
Spare got up, said, “Well, there’s not much more to talk about,” and walked out of the
meeting. (A0334, number 26, pp. A0632, A0662-3) Ile went to STR&DB s offices and
mmediately called and conducted a staff meeting (A0324. number 20, pp. AU631-2.
A0668) at which he told the stall that Appellant was leaving the firm. (AU334. ntumnber
20, p. 00867 AQ334, number 26, p. AUIDS) After that siaff mecting., Spare. Bischel.

oaptan and Isachisen miet in Dischel™s offiee and discussed callime an emergeney mecting
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of the Board of Directors. (A0334, number 20, p. 00867; A0334, number 26, p. AUB670)
The next day, Isachsen met with Collinson in New York. (A0334, number 26, p. AU683)
After that series of meetings, the defendants excluded Appellant from the
management of the company. Spare, Kaplan and Bischel stopped talking to her. Isachsen
never spoke to her again after the Park Hyatt meeting. (A0334, number 26, p. A0671)
Collinson also changed his relationship with her; he had meetings Appellant was not
aware of with the male officers of the firm and applied a different set of rules to
Appellant; his comments to her became requests for her to “get morale back in line.”
(A0334, number 20, pp. 00861-8) Rather than deal with Appellant as a professional,
Collinson defaulted to behaviors that indicated to Appellant that he was getting mput
only from the men, which was representative of the way he traditionally views women.
(A0334, pumber 20, p. 00865) The firm’s counsel told Appellant she could no longer
speak with her, even though Appellant was the President of the company, because of a
conflict of interest. Appellant’s job activities were shifted to others. Her involvement on
the investment strategy teams was removed and diluted. (A0334, number 26, p. AD6Y)

In April or May 1994, Isachsen introduced Mark McKee (“MoKee”) to Spare. as a

potential replacement for Appe1lant.2 (A0334, number 26, p. A0649) Spare and Isachsen
interviewed McKee on May 13, 1994, even though Appellant was still employed by
STK&B. (A0334, number 26, p. A0650) On May 17, 1994, obviously sensing the
dircction events were heading, Isachsen asked STK.& to indemnify him against any
claims “resulting from or arising out of my performance of the consulting service. which.
may include...related matters including the continued employment of certain
emplovees.” (A0334, number 26, pp. A0652-3, AQ727-&5 On May 18, 1994, Isachsen
met again with Collinson in New York. and on May 20. 1994, he met again with Spare.
(A0334, number 26, p. A068S) On May 24, 1994, STKA&B agreed to [sachsen’s proposed
indemnity. (A0334, number 26, p. A0728) On May 25 Isachsen met with Spare i san

Francisco (A0334, number 26, p. AG686). and on May 31, 1994, Isachsen and Spare met

A
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with McKee in San Diego to explore “the opportunities for him™ at STK&B. (A0334,
number 26, p. A0651) Once again, this was while Appellant was still an employee.

Although a regular part of his organizational climate studies is the preparation of a
report, Isachsen never prepared a report on this engagement. (A0334, number 20, pp.
A0616-7)

Throughout her employment with STK&B Appellant was repeatedly commended
for her skill, energy and dedication, the quality of her work, and her substantial
responsibility for the success of the firm. (See, e.g., AU534, number 21, pp. 0900, 01031;
A0335, number 29, p. A0019; A0334, number 26, pp. A0189, A0869) Despite her
dedication to the firm, and her obvious interest in seeing it succeed, the conditions of her
employment at STK&B had become so intolerable that she regretfully resigned from the
firm on June 8, 1994. (A0334, number 26, p. A0831) After Appellant resigned, Collinson
sent her a self-serving fax, disingenuously stating that “the Board has no desire to remove
you as President or to seek your resignation as an officer and employee,” and accusing
her of having a “hidden agenda.” (A0334, number 21, p. U 1029)

McKee, a man, was hired to replace Appellant as Chiet Operating Officer.
According to the firm’s press release, McKee joined the firm effective September 12,
1994. (A0334, number 26, p. A0222) Appellant’s other jobs and responsibilities had been
parsed out among her former male colleagues Spare, Kanlan and Bischel. (A0354.
number 26, pp. A0867-8) At this point. all of the senior officers of STK&B were men.
(A0334, number 26, p. A0785)

Meanwhile, on September 9, 1994, Spare. Kaplan. Bischel and Collinson had
unanimously voted at a board mecting to attempt to force Appellant to sell all of her
shares in STK&I back to the company for less than 4%, of their value. (A0334, number
21, p. 01033: A0334, number 26, p. AUI38) Fach of the defendants stood o make a

substantial personal gain if Appellantwere forced to seiher stock on these terms.

L At his d(‘:p()sition [sachsen orteinatly testified that he mwroduced Spare 1o MceKee m

- - ; . iy R SR TICE EUNOTL U IR
April 1994 \WVhen he reviewed the transcript, he changos wto 7oArT or viay.

0
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Appellant was unable to resolve her differences with defendants, and, atfter
exhausting her administrative remedies, on September 19, 1994, she filed this action.
Respondent moved for summary judgment or adjudication, and on April 23 and May 28,
1996, the court entered its orders granting those motions in part. (C1 2159, 3818) On the
maiters relevant to this appeal, the court granted the motion for summary adjudication on
the sixth, eighth and ninth causes of action of the Third Amended Complaint. (A0333,
number 14, p. 630) With respect to the sixth cause of action, for intentional infliction of
emotional distress, the court found that all of the acts complained of occurred during
Appellant’s employment, and arc thus barred by worker’s compensation. With respect to
cighth and ninth causes of action, for constitutional and statutory gender discrimination,
the court determined that there were no triable issues of material fact. In light of the
determination of the court on the gender discrimination claims, the parties stipulated that
the tenth cause of action, for wrongiul termination in violation of public policy, would be
deemed to have been summarily adjudicated against Appellant and in favor of

Respondent, with Appellant retaining all rights to appeal. (C1 3519)

B. FACTS RELEVANT TO THE COURT’S REFUSAL TO ALLOW
THE JURY TO COMPLETE I'TS DELIBERATIONS

This case was assigned to the Honorable Douglas M. Moore, Jr.. for trial. Judge
Moore was a relatively inexperienced judge, having been appointed to the bench only six
months before then.” Trial commenced on May 28, 1996, and continued until July 30,

1996, when the issues remaining in the case were submitied to the jury.” The jury

* ] udee Moore’s tenure as @ Superior Court Judge was quie short Invarch 1996, two
months before this trial commenced. the electorate dechined to conlirm his appomunent.
qnd he left the beneh soon after this trinl was concluded.

"The trial was inferrupted for three weeks: two weeks tor fudge Moaore to attend judicial
trainine, and one week because Appellant's head v couraeh broke ier shoulder.
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deliberated for six days, then, on August 6, 1996, reported to the baihitf that they had

reached a verdict.”

The pury returned to the courtroom, where the clerk read the verdict. Appellant’s

counsel requested that the jury be polled, and the court directed the clerk to poll the jury.

The poll included the following relevant statements:

6 THE CLERK: Question No. 1: "Did Defendant, Spare, T'engler, Kaplan

7 & Bischel, constructively discharge Plamtiff, Nancy Tengler,
8§ in breach of its employment contract with her"?

S

16 THE CLERK: Maria De Guia, Juror No. 3, was no your

17 answer?

18 JUROR De GUIA: No.

19 THE CLERK: So your answer 1s yes”

20 JUROR De GUIA: Yes.

21 THE CLERK: Juror No. 4, Rosa L1, was that your answer”
272 JUROR LI: My answer was yes.

23 THE CLERK: The answer here was no.

24 JUROR GREEN: She answered ves.

23 THE CLERK: The answer 1n the verdict was no. Was no
20 your answer?

27 JUROR LI: No.

0 THE CLERIK: Araceli DeAlba. Juror No. 6. the answer 1s
7 no. What 1s your verdiet?

3 JUROR DeALBA: T answered ves.

“On June 41996, out of the presence of the jury. Judge Moore had stated: “based on the
cstimates we had, and even going as Tong as [ thought wewere going to go. I made some

commitments with the Navy i ond August. And Dwould hope that we re out of here by

id Nveust, HRTOT3I22-0N

. — d—
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9 THE CLERK: You answered yes. Okay.

10 JUROR DcALBA: I think we're getting confused on our
11 answers. I belicve she was constructively discharged, so

12 that's my answer. I want to make sure.

k%

27 THE CLERK: MaryJane Santos, Juror No. 12, was that your

28 verdict?
4705

] JUROR SANTOS: No. I mean, yeah. I justsaid, do
2 whatever it was.

3 THE CLERK: What?

4 The verdict is no. Was that your verdict?

S JUROR SANTOS: Yes.

O THE CLERK: As to question number one, your Honor, the
7 count is nine to three.

8 THE COURT: Very well.

9 THE CLERIK: No.

10 THE COURT: Yes. Itis three.
SHEP?
2 THE CLERK: Question No. 3, "Did the Defendant, Spare,

Tengler, Kaplan & Bischel, fail to pay Plamntiff,

(D

4 Nancy Tengler, all accrued and unused vacations due her"?

5 The answer 15 ""No."

/ THE CLERK: MaryJane Santos, was that your answer?
3 JUROR SANTOS: (No response.)

Y THE CLERK: Marviane Sants. No. 12 --

| {) JUROR SANTOS: No,

[ TUHIE CLERIG -- was that vour verdiet?

“



12

25

JUROR SANTOS: Yes.

Regarding ihe Cross-Complaint, these are the questions

26 and the answers: "Did Cross-Defendant, Nancy Tengler, breach

27 her employment contract with Cross-Complainant, Spare,

28 Tengler, Kaplan & Bischel, by failing to return documents with

4710

| confidential information when she left her employment"?

=

(WA

The answer 1s "No."

Agnes Aurelio, was that your answer?
JUROR AURELIO: No.

THE CLERK: You did not answer no?
JUROR AURELIQO: Yes.

THE CLERK: Rowland Lee, was that your answer’
JUROR LEE: Yes.

THE COURT: You skipped one, I think.

TITE CLERK: Maria De Guia, was that your answer?
JUROR De GUIA: No.

THE CLERK: Deborah Baron, yes. DeAlba --
JUROR De GUIA: My answer was no.

THE CLIRK: The answer 1s no here.

JUROR BARON: Can I suggest that we begmn agamn.

L

THE CLERIK: With your permission, your lionor,

THIZ COURT: Yes.

(RT 4703-4710. emphasis added)

GUeSHon in an attempt o clarify the confusimg answers 1 (Question No. b oon the
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Immediately after the poll was concluded Appellant's counsel asked the court @

Complaint. and the following oceurred:
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4 MY KUBIN: Your Honor, may we hear Juror No. 12's
5 verdict on the first question on the Compiaint.

6 THE COURT: Go ahead.

7 THE CI.ERK: The first question on the Complaint is:
8 "Did Defendant, Spare, Tengler, Kaplan & Bischel,

0 constructively discharge Plaintiff, Nancy Tengler, in breach
10 of its employment contract with her™?

1] The answer as appears here 1s "No."

12 Was that your verdict?

13 JUROR SANTOS: I can't answer just without giving an
14 explanation why. I'm sorry.

15 THE COURT: Let's do this, Mr. -- I want to --

16 JUROR SANTOS: I'm sorry.

17 THE COURT: I want to poll the jury on Question 1.
18 THE CLERK: Okay.

19 THE COURT: AndI just want to ask each one of the

20 jurors how did they vote so that we don't have the confusion

21 that I think we had as we went through.

22 Would you read the question, please.
23 THE CLERK: "Did Defendant, Spare, Tengler, Kaplan &
04 Bischel, constructively discharge Plaintiff, Nancy Tengler, in

25 breach of its employment contract with her"?

20 Answer yes or no.

27 Juror No. 1, what is your answer?

28 JUROR AURELIO: No.

4716

l THI: CTLERK: Juror No. 2. what 1s vour answer?

? JUROR BITANGA: Yes.

3 MS. de ODDOND: Ws confusing agan. vour Honer.

[
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4 THE COURT: Let's do it this way: Read the question and
5 the juror's name, how did you votc.

6 THE CLERK: "Did Defendant, Spare, Tengler, Kaplan &

7 Bischel, constructively discharge Plaintift, Nancy Tengler, n
8 breach of its employment contract with her"?

9 Answer yes or no.

10 How did you vote, Ms. Agnes?

I JUROR AURELIO: No.
12 THE CLERK: I will repeat the question, how did you

13 vote?
JUROR BITANGA: I vote no.
% % %
7 THE CLERK: How did you vote, Ms. Santos?
& JUROR SANTOS: 1 changed. I think she was.
9 THE CLERXK: Then what?
10 (Whereupon, sidebar discussion was held oft the record.)
11 THE CLERK: Judge, are you calling for me?
12 THE COURT: 1 am calling for you.

13 (Whereupon, sidebar discussion was held oft the record.)
14 THE COURT: All right. [.adies and gentlemen, as vou can

15 see, we're -- we don't have a verdict of nine jurors voting

16 one way or the other on Question No. 1 with respect to the

17 Complaint. So I'd ask you to return to the jury deliberation

18 room and see if you can reach a verdict and then return to
19 this room, 1f you can.
(R'T4715-4717. emphasis added)
Counsel for Respondent made no objection to the request to clarity Juror No. 127

verdict on tie st guestion on the Complaint: she made no objection to furor No. 1275

attempt o clarify her verdict: she made no objection to the court s staiement that he

172
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wanted to poll the jury on Question No.1; she made no objection to the court’s comment
that there was confusion “as we went through™ (RT 4715) (in fact she herself noted: “It’s
confusing again” (RT 4716)); she made no objection to the court’s determination that
“we don’t have a verdict of nine jurors voting one way or the other on Question No. 1
with respect to the Complaint” (RT 4717); and she made no objection to the court asking
the jury to return to the jury deliberation room to see if they could reach a verdict.

After the jury retired for further deliberations Respondent’s counsel commented

that Juror No. 12° ¢

appecared to be emotionally overwrought when she came into the
courtroom and when she first was speaking,” and that Appellant “was herselt breaking
down.” (RT 4718:2-6) According to the court, Ms. Santos was visibly distraught when
she sat down (RT 4724:25-27), and “She began crying once the verdict started to be
read.” (RT 4722:22-24) The trial judge commented “normally I say something about
outbreaks of emotion and things like that. T didn’t in this case.” (RT 4718:17-18) Counsel

for Respondent made no request for the court to admonish the jury before sending them

out for further deliberations to remind them that they must not be influenced by

sympathy, passion or prejl,ldice.7 The court also apparently did not feel that such an

admonition was necessary. In any event, 1t did not give one.

>

{'he court then noted that the jury was “back deliberating again to see if they can

PR

come to an answer of nine on the first question” (R'1T 4717:27-4718:1). and sard, “They
may well be out tomorrow.” (RT 4720:3) Respondent’s counsel noted that 1t had “turned
out not to be a verdict,” and expressed a hope that they do come to a verdict. (RT 4718:9-
| 1) The court acknowledged several times that the jury had not yet rcached a verdict:

16 THE COURT: All right. Well, let's talk about damages.
17 1 proposc we just proceed first thing tomorrow.

I
ST 1

Y Juror No. 12 was then named M arviane Santos and 18 now named Marviane Stimmons:
sire 1s relerred (o herein as TMS. Santos.

"The trial court had previousty given this standard mstruction (BAJL 1.0OY before the jury
heean its deliberations.



26 THE COURT: We proceed with the damages on the

27 Complaint, and we proceed with the damages on the

28 Cross-Complaint.
4720

1 MS. KUBIN: While they're still deliberating.

2 THE COURT: No, no. No. When they come back, if and

3 when they come back. They may well be out tomorrow. |

4 just -- I just don't want to keep these folks here any longer

5 than we have to.

ook Ak
25 THE COURT: Well, the trouble is if they come back with

26 a verdict tonight, I either discharge them or bring them back

2’7 n the morning.

«t ', )
I

4721

4 THE COURT: ...Ifthey come back with a verdict, I'd like to discharge them

5 tonight.
(CT 4719-21, emphasis added)

At approximately 5:00 p.m., August 6, the jury toreman sent a note to the jud
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L

There is no indication in the record that the judge showed the note to counsel at that time,

although it was shown to counsel at some point. (R'T 4732:24-26) The note stated: "We

have not reached a verdict.” It went on to say that the :urv “will convene w: 8:30 -

4:00pm on 8/7/96. We the jury believe we will not be able to conclude by the end of the

day Wed Aug 7. 1996, Therefore please respond to the previous Note #6 with vellow

-~ .

sheet. first thing in the morming. Thank vou. (CF AQ500)

Shortly after receiving these notes. the court convened with counsel present. and

the followmg oceurred:

472

|



19
20
21
22
23
04
25
26
27
28

THE COURT: We're outside the presence of the jury. 1 have
concluded after conferring with scveral other judges in the
courthouse, and doing some brief research, that we had a
verdict the first time. And that was improper to repoll the
jury.

I've looked at the transcript. The transcript has been
read. It was the verdict when it was reached in the jury
room, and that was the vote. There was a display of emotion
that occurred in this court, watched between the plaintitf and

Juror No. 12. It became patently obvious to the court as we

4722

]
2
3
4
5
0

~

/
8
9

10

continued down through the other six --

(Interruption in the proceedings.)

THE COURT: Could you.

(Record read.)

THE COURT: -- questions on the verdict form that this
particular juror became more and more emotionally upset as
the -- as the plaintiff continued to show her emotion.

We had a good verdict when 1t was {irst polled. 1 find
it to be a good verdict. 1 made a mistake in asking for a

repoiling. We have a good verdict. We're gomng to proceed

with the damage aspect of the case tomorrow.

£k %

4725

{5 THE COURT: Allright. Let's bring the jury 1.

|6 Anvthing c¢lsce for the record?

|7 MS. de ODDONI:: No. your Honor,

|8 MS. IKUDBING Just that we disagree with the verdict,
1O your tlonor.

fJ}
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20 T11E COURT: I understand you disagree.
21 MS. de ODDONE: Nothing further, your Honor.
27 MS. KUBIN: May Juror 12 be inquired of as to what her
23 verdict 187
24 THE COURT: Absolutely not. Absolutely not.
235 (Whereupon, the following proceedings were held 1n open
26 court in the presence of the jury at 5:13 p.m.)
27 THE CLERK: Remain seated. Come to order. The Court 1s
28 back in session.
4726

1 THE COURT: ILadies and gentlemen of the jury, the Court,
2 on reflection and some quick legal research, brief legal

3 research, has concluded that a true and correct verdict had

4 been rendered; and the original poll of the jury supported

5 that true verdict of the jury.

0 So [ would ask at this time, Mr. Jasmin, if you would

7 record the verdict as read.

8 THE CLERK: Yes, your Honor.

9 (CT 4721-4726, emphasis added)
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When the court announced that it had concluded that a true and correct verdict had

been rendered, and directed the clerk to record the verdict as read, Ms. Santos shook her

head “no” several times. (CT 4781, 93: R'14733:9-12)

Because certain issues relating to damages remained to be tried. the court did not

discharge the jury. [t eave a standard admonition not to discuss the case with anyone. and

asked the jury to return the next day.

The next morning, August 7. before the proceedings started. the court received

(WO More notes from tie jury: one from Ms. Santos and the other from Juror No. 6.

Araceln DeAtha (R A733-4730)

10
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Ms Santos’ note read as [ollows:

Your Honor,

Yesterday, May 6, 1996 {sic], my true verdict 18 "YES™ to Plaintiff’s

Question #1. I decided that I made a mistake on my answer as 1 was
walking into the courtroom. I knew I made a mistake but I did not know
how to get a message to you, because I was afraid I broke the law 1t I spoke
while you were speaking.

Please accept my true verdict as “Yes” to Plaintiff’s Question #1.

Thank you,

Juror #12

Maryjanc Santos

Ms. DeAlba’s note stated:

Your Honos:

[ am about to witness the most unfair trial where justice has nothing to do.
You should consider the pressure that some jurors have, not having any
more time to share and deliberate. Changing their verdict to a no when they
strongly believe m a yes.

Aracell DeAlba

In the interim, the parties had rcached a stipulation on the damage issues. The
court told counsel that because of the stipulation, and the court’s decision that there had
been a verdict, it was ready to discharge the jury. Plamuft’s counsel objected to the
discharge on the ground that there had not been a verdict. Defendant’s counsel stated that
they believed there was a verdiet. The trial judge sard: “You guys are the ones that arc
00Ing to have to sortit out on appeal. Okay.” (RY 4737:3-14) The court then discharged

the jury.
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Plaintiff moved for a new trial, supporting the motion with a Declaration of Ms.
Santos, in which Ms. Santos declared under penality ot perjury:

e On August 6, 1996 the jury voted on the verdict in this case. Although 1
voted in favor of the verdict finding for defendant on plaintiff’s
constructive discharge claim while in the jury room, as I walked into the
courtroom I realized I had made a mistake and that my vote was in favor
of plaintiff. Although I knew I had made this mistake when I walked
into the courtroom, [ was not sure how to get the message to the judge
without breaking the law.

e Because 1 changed my vote, I did not agree with the verdict during the
jury polling. As I later stated during the polling and in a note I gave to
the judge’s clerk the next morning, I believe Nancy ‘Tengier was
constructively discharged from her employment with STK&B. It is for
this reason that, when the court announced that there was a verdict, I
shook my head “no” several times.

« My realization of my mistake occurred as I was walking in the
courtroom and thus had nothing to do with Nancy lengler’s demeanor.
During the reading of the verdict and the polling of the jurors, I was
looking at Ken Kaplan, not Nancy tengler.

e A true and corrcct copy of the note | gave to the judge’s clerk in the
morning of August 7, 1996 1s attached as Exhibit A. 1 wrote the judge
this note because [ wanted him to know that my verdict was that Nancy
Tengler had been constructively discharged. (C1 4781)

The court denied the motion for new trial. stating. (nfer alia, ~"Juror Santos was

neither coerced nor silenced and she cannot now contend that she felt silenced by a fear
of breaking the law when the Court poll {sic] her on the verdiet.” (C1 4882:10-13) The

N

court also eranted defendant’s motion to strike Ms. Santos declaration. Plamntidt appeals.
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1. STANDARD OF REVIEW

On review of an order granting summary adjudication, the court must resolve all
doubts in favor of the appellant. The court conducts a de novo examination to determine
whether there are any issues of material fact, or whether the moving party is entitled to
judgment as a matter of law. Dora v. Frontline Video, Inc., 15 Cal.App.4th 536 (1993).

The appellate court also conducts a de novo examination to determine whether the
trial court correctly construed and applied a statute, here section 018 of the Code of Civil
Procedure. Burckhard v. Del Monte Corp., 48 Cal.App.4th 1912, 1916 (1996). In
addition, “the ultimate determination of the 1ssue of . . . misconduct rests upon the
appellate court’s view of the overall record, taking into account such factors, inter alia, as
the nature and seriousness of the remarks and misconduct, the general atmosphere,
including the judge’s control, of the trial, the likelithood of prejudicing the jury, and the
efficacy of objection or admonition under all the circumstances. ” Las Palmas Associates
v. Las Palmas Center Assoéz'ares, 235 Cal.App.3d 1220, 1247-48 (1991) (citations
omitted). Thus, the appellate court independently ascertains the conclusion that must

properly be drawn from the pertinent facts set forth in the record. Leslie Salt Co. v. San
Francisco Bay Conservation Etc. Comm., 153 Cal.App.3d 605, 611 (1984).

I1I. ARGUMENT

A. MORE THAN ONE-FOURTH OF THE JURORS DISAGREED WITH THE
SIGNED VERDICT; THE COURT WAS REQUIRED TO SEND THEM OUT
FOR FURTHER DELIBERATIONS

Article 1, Section 16 of the Constitution of the State of California guarantics the

right of trial by jury, and specilies that in civil cases three-fourths of the jury may

1Y
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render 4 verdict.® Section 618 of the California Code of Civil Procedure gives etiect

{o this Constitutional right:

§ 618. Verdiet of jury

When the jury, or three-fourths of them, have agreed upon a verdict,
they must be conducted into court and the verdict rendered by their
foreman. The verdict must be in writing, signed by the foreman, and

must be read to the jury by the clerk, or by the court, if there be no

clerk, and the inquiry made whether it is their verdict. Either party may

require the jury to be polled, which is done by the court or clerk, asking

each juror if it is his verdict. If upon such inquiry or polling, more than

one-fourth of the jurors disagree thereto, the jury must be sent out again,

but if no such disagreement be expressed, the verdict is complete and

the jury discharged from the case.

Section 618 imposcs certain specific mandatory polling requirements on the trial

court:

1) If either party requests that the jury be polled, the clerk or the court must ask

each juror if the verdict signed by the foreman “1s his verdict.”

2} “If upon such inquiry or polling, more than one-fourth of the jurors disagree
thereto,” the jury must be sent out for further deliberations. (C.C.P. § 618,
emphasis added)

The court has no discretion to ignore these statutory commands.

i § 16. Trial by jury
Trial by jury is an nviolate right and shall be secured to all. but in a civil cause
(hree-fourths of the jury may render a verdiet . .. . Ina civil cause a jury may be
waived by the consent of the partics expressed as prescribed by statute.
In civil causes the jury shall consist of 12 persons or a lesser number agreed on by the
pzu‘ties n open court -
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1. During the Poll the Questions Were Contusing;

the Answers Were Confusing and Contradictory

The court and counsel for both sides noted that Ms. Santos was obviously
“distraught” and “emotionally overwrought” when she came nto the courtroom, and that
she began crying “when the verdict started to be read.” (RT 4718:2-6; 4724:25-27,
4722:22-24) In the ‘initial poll on Question No. 1 of the Complaint, Ms. Santos was asked
“was that your verdict?” (RT 4704:17-18) This was not the question required by the
statute, viz, to ask each juror “if it is his verdict.” The clerk’s question, posed 1n the past
tense, could obviously have been understood by Ms. Santos to refer to how she had voted
in the jury room. She gave several confusing and contradictory responses: “No. I mean
yeah. I just said, do whatever it was. ... Yes.” (RT 4705:1-5) In light of her later
clarification that she had changed her vote after leaving the jury room, 1t 1s easy to sec
how she might have been confused. Furthermore, the question posed by the clerk
incorrectly implied that the vote in the jury room was the juror's final chance to dissent
from the verdict. This, illustrateé the wisdom of the legislature in requiring that the

question be asked in the present tense. Cf, People v. Burnett, (1962) 204 Cal.App.2d 453,

457. in which the question was correctly posed: “is this your verdict?” (Emphasis added)
After the initial poll had been completed, Appellant’s counsel asked simply Y our
was hardly an inappropriate request in light of Ms. Santos cvident confusion and the tact
that she had given no fewer than four different answers to that question. The Court said
“(GGo ahead,” and the clerk asked Ms. Santos again: “Was that your verdict? Ms. Santos
replied: “I can’t answer just without giving an explanation why. I'm sorry.”” (RT 4713:4-

15)

7 At the end of the day, when the trial judee had announced that he had decided to 1enore
Ms. Santos statement that she disagreed with the verdict, Appeliant's counsel asked:
“Mav Juror 12 be inquired as to what her verdict 1877 The court responded: “Absolutely
not. Absolutely not.” (RT4723:22-24)

o



http://www.jdsupra.com/post/documentViewer.aspx?fid=c7042d66-8b3c-40f1-b2be-ba3d1f166592

2. The Trial Judge’s Decision to Repoll the Jurors

Disclosed that Four Jurors Disagreed with the Verdict

At this point the trial judge stepped 1n and said: "] want to poli the jury on

Question No. 1.... And I just want to ask each one of the jurors how did they vote so that

we don’t have the confusion that I think we had as we went through. Would you read the

question please.” (RT 4715:17-22, emphasis added) The question was read by the clerk:
“Did Defendant ... constructively discharge Plamntiit, Nancy Tengler, in breach of its
employment contract with her”? Answer yes or no .... How did you vote Ms. Santos?”
And Ms. Santos replied: “I changed. I think she was.”

Since Ms. Santos’ was the fourth dissenting vote, at this point Section 618
rcquired that “the jury must be sent out again.” At tirst the court complied with the
statute. The trial judge noted “we don’t have a verdict of nine jurors voting one way or
the other on Question No. 1,” and asked the jury “to return to the jury deliberation room
and see if you can reach a verdict and then return to this room, 1f you can.” (RT
4717:1519) The jury returned to the jury room and continued 1ts deliberations. At the end
of the day, the foreman sent a note to the court stating: “We have not reached a verdict”

and “we the jury believe we will not be able to conclude by the end of the [next] day....”

(CT A0330)

3. Despite the Disagreement the Judge Ordered

the Clerk to Record the Earlier Verdict

[Jowever, before the jury left that evening, the trial judee announced to counsel: !
have concluded ... that we had a verdict the first time. And that it was improper o repoll
the jury.” (RT 4721:19-23) The judge decided that the last response Ms. Santos cave o
the initial poll supported the verdict read by the clerk. and therefore, that was a cood
verdiet, (R'T 4724:8-9) He made this decision despite the fact that counsel for both sides.

oo that the jury had not reached

—
N—

the jury foreman, and the court stself had all acknowied

27



tttttttttttttttt JDSUPRA

http://www.jdsupra.com/post/documentViewer, .aspx?fid=c7042d66 -8b3c-40f1-b2be-ba3d1f166592

verdict on Question No. 1. (R1 4717-4718;, CT A0330) The judge declined to reconsider
his decision in light of objections by Appellant’s counsel, and adamantly refused her
request to inquire as to what Juror No. 12°s verdict “is.” ("Absolutely not. Absolutely
not.”) (RT 4725:22-24)

The judge then called the jury back into court and told them that he had concluded
that a true and correct verdict had been rendered. Ms. Santos shook her head “no™ as the
jﬁdge made this announcement. (CT 4781, 9 3; RT 4733:9-12) The judge then

admonished the jury not to discuss the case with anyone, and directed them fo return to

court the following morning. (RT 4726-4727)
4. The “Eyes of the World”

The purpose of the jury poll is explained 1n People v. Thornton, (1984) 155
Cal.App.3d 845, 859:
[T]hese processes are far from empty formalities of the type that ... might
be deemed inconsequential to the defendant’s constitutional rights. It is
these procedures that allow the defendant to ““test” whether the verdict form
that was signed in the privacy of the jury room represents the “true verdict.”
1.e. the verdict that each and every juror i1s wiitling to holid to under the eyes
of the world, or whether it is the product of mistake or unduly precipitous
judgment. 0
There is certainly no dispute in this case that, although Ms. Santos had voted "no”

on Question No. | in the jury room, when “the eyes of the world™ were upon her she was

" Althoueh Thornton, Chipman v. Superior Court, (19821131 Cal. App.3d 263) and
People v. Burneit, ( 1062) 204 Cal.App.2d 453, 457 wvolve criminal defendants” rights
under Penal Code §8§ 1163 and 1164, the rights of the parties m civil cases under C.O P08
618 are no different on these issues. and 1t s appropriate for the court to look to such
criminal cases lor guidance. See, e.g.. Stoner v, IWilliams.  19906) 46 C‘ul.z'\pp.al"h 930.
006, The statutes are very similar, and both eriminal and cwvil cases are coverned by
Article [, § 16 of the California Constitution.
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not willing to stand by that decision. She was emotionally overwrought and confused
throughout the reading of the verdicts and the polling. When she was given an
opportunity to clear up the confusion, she unequivocallv stated I changed.” This 18
precisely why jurics are polled — to allow each juror to correct the product of unduly
precipitous judgment, and to state the verdict she is willing to hold to under the eyes of
the world.

The trial judge improperly interposed his own will on this process. Despite his
own observation that the first poll had caused confusion, the trial judge seized on one of
the several earlier vacillating and confusing statements made by Ms. Santos, and declared
that that one statement foreclosed all further attempts by Ms. Santos (and even the court

itself?) to clarify what her true verdict was. This was in clear violation of section 618.

5. Jurors Have the Power and the Right to
Change Their Verdict Until it is Recorded

As stated in Chipman v. Superior Court, (1982) 151 Cal.App.3d 063, 267 the court
is required to “give effect to the right of a juror to change his verdict at any time up to the
time that it is finally recorded.” Here the verdict was “tinally recorded™ at approximately
5:15 p.m. August 6, 1996. (RT 4726: 16-18: “So I would ask at this time Mr. Jasmin, 1t
you would record the verdict as recad. THE CLERK: Yes. vour Honor.”) (See 4727:10 for

the time) This was after the jury had been sent out to continue their deliberations, after

the court had interrupted those deliberations and called the jury back to the courtroom,

and more than an hour after Ms. Santos had told the court she did not agree with the
verdict signed by the foreman. (RT 4717:8: sec line 23 for the time)

In Chipman, one of the jurors had voted for conviction mn the jury room. but stated
that was not his truc verdict during the poll. The court “acecepted the mitial vote, and
recorded the verdict. The Court of Appeals disagreed with the trial court's actions. held
that “any juror is empowered to declarc. up to the last moment. that he dissents from the

Verdict (fd. atl Z00). and issucd a writ conmnanding the e court to vacale the order that

I
-
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the verdict be recorded. Ms. Santos thus had the power to change her vote, and she did

-, b3
change it.

6. The Purpose of the Poll is to Determine if any
Jurors Disagree with the Signed Verdict

The trial court in the instant case failed to perceive that the purpose of the jury
polling is to determine whether any jurors “disagree” with the verdict signed by the
foreman. The polling in this case did show that “more than one-fourth of the yurors
disagree” with the signed verdict on Question No. 1. Given that result, the only options
open to the court were to send the jury out for further deliberations, or to declare a
mistrial. It did not have the right to nullify a juror’s declaration that she disagreed with
the verdict, and it certainly did not have the right to record a verdict to which “more than

one-fourth of the juror’s disagree.” (C.C.P. § 618)

7. The Trial Court had a Duty to Avoid Confusion

“Peace, justice, truth. ..

Instructions, manners. mysteries and trades,
Degrees, observances, customs, and laws,
Decline to your confounding contraries;
And yet confusion live!”

Shakespeare, Timon of Athens, 1V. 1. 16-21.

It should be noted that since the verdiet had not yet been recorded and the jury had not
been discharged but remained under the contro!l of the court. this case 15 not like cases
such as People v. Romero, (1982) 31 Cal.3d 685, and People v, Peavey. (1981) 126
Cal.App.3d 44. In those cases the salutary policies of finality and agaist impeachment ot
verdicts precluded reopening property recorded jury verdicts.

i
N
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In the realm of the courtroom, the trial judge is charged with the essential task to
avoid confusion if possible, and to rectify any confusion that cannot be avoided. This is
particularly {rue at the crucial point when the verdict 1s being verified. Thus, the trial
court may not simply ignore equivocal, vacillating or inconsistent responses by a juror. It
is especially unfair for a trial judge to place the burden of clarification on an emotionally
distraught juror, and to rebuke her for saying, “I was afraid I broke the law if I spoke
while you were speaking.” (RT 4736:5-6; CT 4882:10-13) “In what sometimes appears a
sterile atmosphere in the courtroom, it would be too much to require the jury to know if
and when they should speak up.” People v. Thornton, (1989) 155 Cal. App. 3d 845, &52.

The duty of the trial court to “ascertain the cause of the juror’s confusion and
explain the meaning of the verdict,” Marrinucciv. Bryant, et al., (1957) 151 Cal. App. 2d
298 303, serves the essential ends of justice and truth. First, the trial court thereby
“prevent[s] a doubtful or insufficient finding from passing into the records of the court.”
People v. Bonillas, (1989) 48 Cal. 3d 757, 773. Second, 1t gives effect to “the right of a
juror to change his verdict at any time up to the time it 1s finally recorded.” Chipman v.
Superior Court, (1982) 131 Cal. App. 3d 263, 267. And finally, 1t provides the parties
with their only opportunity to test whether the verdict form that was signed in the privacy
of the jury room represents the “true verdict” that the juror 1s willing to stand by in open
court and “under the eves of the world.” People v. Thorntor, (1984) 155 Cal. App. 3d
845, 859. -

In this case, the trial court dispensed with these principles in favor of expediency.
The unassailable facts show that the trial court recorded a verdict in disregard of Ms.
Santos’ clear statement that she had changed her mind. The court thus impermissibly

treated the jury poll as a mere “empty formality.” See Thornton, 155 Cal.App. 3d at 859.

8. Juries Can Be Trusted

NMoreover, the trial judee’s later assertion that he had sua sponte concluded that Ms.

Santos based her decision to chanee her verdict upon improper emotional empathy tor the
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plaintiff ignored a crucial assumption underlying that system [of trial by jury|...that
juries will follow the instructions given them by the trial judge... The ‘rule’—indeed, the
premise upon which the system of jury trials functions under the American judicial
system—is that juries can be trusted to follow the trial court’s mstructions.
Francis v. Franklin, (1984) 471 U.S. 307, 324, n.9; United States v. Olano, (1983) 507
U.S. 725, 740. Even assuming that Ms. Santos” dectsion had been influenced by empathy,
“it is only in the extreme case that the impropriety and prejudice...cannot be removed by
an instruction to a jury to disregard 1t.” Hilliard v. A.H. Robins Co., (1983) 148 Cal. App.
3d 374, 406, 196 Cal. Rptr. 117. Under these circumstances, the trial judge’s proper
course would have been to direct the jury to continue their deliberations with an
admonition that they recall and follow the instruction he had given them when they
started their deliberations: that they “must not be influenced by sympathy, prejudice or
passion” (RT 4504:13-14). See People v. Bonillas, (1989) 48 Cal. 3d 757, 770-777.

This case is the unfortunate result of improper intervention in the jury’s province
by an inexperienced trial judge. Sadly, this entire problem could have been avoided

simply by allowing the jury to finish its deliberations. The trial judge 1gnored the

safeguards of Section 618 of the Code of Civil Procedure and Article I, Section 16 of the
California Constitution, by directing the clerk to record a verdict with which more than
one-fourth of the jurors disagreed. This amounted to nothing less than a usurpation of the
power of the jury, and an arrogation of that power to the court. In the Anglo-American
(radition of jurisprudence the right to trial by a jury 1s fundamental. A trial without
interference by a judge in the province of the jury has been a cherished tradition since at
lcast the infamous trial of William Penn. Now, of course. it 1s a constitutional right. All
trial judges would do well to remember Justice White's comment in Duncan v

Louisiana, (1968) 391 U.S. 145, 157, that “when juries difter with the result at which the
judee would have arrived. 1t 1s usually because they are serving some of the very

- -
.

purposes for which thev were created and for which they are now emploved



B. THE GENDER DISCRIMINATION CLAIMS
STTOULD NOT HAVE BEEN SUMMARILY ADJUDICATED

1. Reviewing Grants of Summary Adjudication

The court’s sole function on a motion for summary adjudication i1s to determine

whether there are any issues of material fact, not to decide any issuc. Code of Civil

Procedure § 437¢(c) All matters going to the weight of the evidence must be disregarded.

Mann v. Cracchiolo, 38 Cal. 3d 18 (1985) A summary adjudication cannot be granted
solely because the opposing party’s evidence 1s circumstantial. The presence of
recasonable inferences arising from circumstantial evidence 1s sufficient to controvert
direct evidence proffered by the moving party and defeat a motion for summary
adjudication. Hulett v. Farmers Ins. Exchange, 10 Cal.App.4th 1051, 1059 (1992)
Although the court generally does not resolve questions of credibility in ruling on a
motion for summary adjudiéation, where other factors are present that call a witness’
credibility into question, the court may disregard that testimony. See. e.g., AARTS
Productions, Inc. v. Crocker National Bank, 179 Cal.App.3d 1061, 1064 (1986) The
court must consider not only the evidence presented, but also reasonable inferences
drawn from that evidence. Mann v. Cracchiolo, supra, 338 Cal. 3d 18 at 3G (1985)
[lowever. the court may not weigh the direct evidence against the inferences. If a
rcasonable inference controverts a material tact, there is a triable 1ssuc and the motion
must be denied. Gigax v. Ralston Purina Co., 136 Cal.App.3d 591, 602 (1982) The

-

declarations, evidence and reasonable inferences offered by the party opposing the

~

motion must be liberally construed, while that offered by the moving party must be

’
-~

strictly construed in determining whether there are any mable 1ssues ol tact, D Amico v

Board of Medical Examiners, 11 Cal. 3d 1021 (1974)

I
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2. The Law Governing the Gender Discrimination Claims

Appellant’s claims of discrimination are claims of “disparate treatment.” This
occurs when an employee is treated less favorably than other employees because of her
sex. Caldwell v. Paramount Unified School Dist., 41 Cal. App.4th 189, 195 (1995), reh’g
denied. review denied. In order to prove disparate treatment, a plaintitf must show that
that her employer was motivated by a discriminatory mtent. /d. Since in "most cases ...
the plaintiff will be unable to produce direct evidence of the employer’s intent, but will
instead have to rely on circumstantial evidence and the inferences that may be drawn
therefrom....” id, the courts have established a scheme of shilling burdens to aid the
plaintiff in proving her case through circumstantial evidence.

California has adopted the federal scheme of shifting burdens for the test of
whether a plaintiff has been the subject of sex discrimination. Mixon v. Fair Employment
& Housing Com., 192 Cal.App.3d 1306, 1316 (1987). This test was described by the
United States Supreme Court in Texas Dept. of Community Affairs v. Burdine, 450 U.S.
248 252-253 (1981): the plaintiff first must prove by a preponderance of the evidence a
prima facie case of discrimination; if the plaintiff succeeds, the detendant then bears the
burden to “articulate a legitimate, nondiscriminatory reason for the employvee’s
rejection.” (id., citations omitted); and finally. it the deiendant carries this burden. the
plaintiff bears the burden of persuasion by a prepondcerance of the evidence that the
“legitimate” reasons are in {act a pretext. /d.

A prima facie casc of discrimination depends on the context. When the plamtiff is
discharged from her job, 12 the prima facie elements of discrimination are:

(1) complainant belongs to a protected class: (23 [her]| job performance was

satisfactory: (3) [slhe was discharged: and (4) others not in the protecied class

12 Constructive discharge is an actionable form of terminetion wrder Gove Code 3
12940). See. Vatdez v. City of Los Angeles, 231 CalbApp. 33 1043 01991 Secdes v Cadamn
liie.. 2 Cill./\pp.iﬂh 390 (‘19“) D). overruled on other grovds me Teeer v dnccuser-Buselr,
Froe 7 Clalb Ath P23 12T (TUS-L.

W()
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were retained in similar jobs, and/or [her] job was filled by an individual of
comparable qualifications not i the protected class.
Micon v. Fair Employment & Housing Com., supra at 131 8; Caldwell v. Paramount

Unified School Dist., supra at 200.
3. Appellant Was Treated Differently Because Sheis a Woman

As shown in the Statement of Facts above, plaintiff has set forth sufficient
evidence to establish a prima facie case of sex discrimination under both Arficle I,
Section § of the California Constitution'” and the Fair Employment and Housing Act,
Government Code Section 129400, ef seg. She is, without argument, a woman who was
replaced by a man with, (presumably) comparable qualifications, while her fellow
officers, all men, maintained their positions. The numerous positive comments on the
quality of her work, not to mention the undentable success of the company under her
management, is more than sufficient evidence (o prove that her job performance was
satisfactory. The facts that she was stripped of a large amount of her responsibilities,
excluded from working in areas crucial to her career development. shunned by her male
peers and superiors, omitted from important meetings. had her authority undermined, was
the victim of an attempt to banish her to a small outpost with a vastly diminished role so
the men in the company could assume her management and mvestment functions, and
(hat she was forced to work under demeaning conditions certainly raise triable issucs that
she was discriminated against in “terms, conditions and privileges or privileges of
employment” (Government Code § 12940(a)). was “disqualified from L. pursuing a

business. profession. vocation. or employment™ because of her sex. and was

¢ 8. Bmploviment discrimination. A person may nol he disqualified from entering or

pursuing a busiess. profession, vocation. or cmplovment because of sex. race, croed.

color. or nationa! or ethnwe ornain.
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constructively discharged in violation of the statute, the constitution and public policy. 14
(See also, Liebert v. Transworld Systems, Inc., (1993) 32 Cal.App.4"™ 1693.

Although it should not be required to defeat these motions for summary judgment
unless and until the delendants successfully raise issues that shift the burden back to her
(see, Mixon v. Fair Employment & Housing Com., 192 Cal.App.3d at 1316), Appellant
has also presented evidence that any claimed “legitimate™ reasons for her discharge that
may be offered by defendants were pretextual. Isachsen’s statements that defendants
Spare, Kaplan and Bischel were “threatened by her femininity,” that women, especially

powerful, young women, “evoke certain reactions from men,” and that she had that going

“against’” her, is direct evidence of the defendants’ discriminatory motives. 1> Appellant
had to suffer the indignity of listening to this pious consultant offering to “mentor” her to
help her “channel her femininity,” in order to help her deal with her problem. Isachsen’s
statement that he had “worked with” other powerful women like Appellant leads to the
reasonable inference that his real task was to teach Appellant how to behave around men
and to accept her proper role. The fact that Isachsen never did 1ssue the report he was
ostensibly engaged to prepare leads to the reasonable inference that the real assignment
he performed for Respondent STK&B was accomplished when Appellant was forced out

- .

of the company.

L4 “['T|he standard by which a constructive discharge 1s determuned 1s an objective one--
the question is “whether a reasonable person faced with the allegedly intolerable
cmplover actions or conditions of employment would have no reasonable alternative
except to quit.”™ Twrner v Anheuser-Busch, Ine., T CanAth 1238, 1248 (1994, 52

Cal Rpur.2d 223 (citations omitied).

1Y Pabi Mason. a relatively junior female officer of STR&D. testified at her deposition
that. based on her personal experience at STIK&B, she beheved Appetlant was unfairly
reated because of her gender. (17 01861-2) She. too. had been the vietim of
Jisertimination by STRNA&DY.

"._.r)
i



4 There Are Triable Issues

Appellant raised triable issues that Respondent discriminated aganst her in the
terms, conditions, or privileges of her employment. Discrimination in the highest levels
of management, as in the case at hand, may be difficult to prove. Juries, perhaps even
courts, may find it difficult to appreciate how a woman who climbs high enough to bump
her head against the “glass ceiling” could be a victim of unlawtul discrimination. The fact
that such discrimination is difficult to prove, however, does not mean it does not exist.
The fact that the few women whose assent to the upper echelon has stopped by the glass
Ceiling arc, by definition, somewhat successtul and powerful, does not change the fact
that they may be victims of discrimination who merit the tull protection of the civil rights

laws.

C. THE INTENTIONAL INFLICTION OF EMOTIONAL DISTRESS
CLAIM IS NOT BARRED BY WORKER’S COMPENSATION

The trial court summarily adjudicated the Sixth Cause of Action for intentional
infliction of emotional distress against plaintiff on the ground that, since the alleged
conduct occurred during Appellant’s employment, this claim 1s barred by the exclusive
remedy provisions of the Workers Compensation Act. (C1 2161, 3826) However, the
conduct alleged in this cause of action 1s the very same conduct that supports Appeliant’s
claims for gender discrimination and wrongful termination in violation of public policy.
[1is well settled in California that such claims are not barred by workers conipensation.

Where the alleged conduct violates the fundamental public policics of this state,
the conduct is outside of the proper role of the employer. and “cannot under any
reasonable viewpoint be considered a “normal part of the employment relationship.
oy, Seatry Insurance, (1992) 1 Cal 47 1083 (quoting Cole v, Fair Qaks Face
Proicction District. {1987) 43 Cal . 3d 148.1060) This prnciple has been repeatedly

adTirmed and apphied series ol recent cases. See, e.g . Fermino v Fedeo, (1994)

Lo
IJ
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Cal.4™ 701; Accardi v. Superior Court, (1993) 17 CaI.App.Afth 341; and Liebert v.
Transworld Svstems, Inc., (1995) 32 (3::11.}‘&131).4[11 1693. The grant of summary

adjudication was manifest error.
IV. CONCLUSION

The judgments against Appellant on the Sixth (Intentional Infliction of Emotional

Distress), Eighth (Constitutional Gender Discrimination), Ninth (Statutory Gender

Discrimination), Tenth (Constructive Wrongful Discharge in Violation of Public Policy),

and Fleventh (Constructive Wrongful Discharge in Violation of Contract) causes of

action should be reversed.

Dated: May 27, 1997

Respectfully submuitted,

N/LW

Robert M. Chilvers
CHILVERS & TAYL.OR, PC

Attornevs for Appellant

Nancy lengler
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